
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Haynes

AGENDA April 01, 2015

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Haynes

Minutes Recessed Meeting - March 12, 2015

Minutes Agenda Session - March 12, 2015

Minutes Regular Meeting - March 18, 2015

Report Trustee Monthly Report February 2015

Report Trustee Excess Fee Report February 2015

Res. No. 415-1 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for notary public positions.

Res. No. 415-2 A Resolution re-appointing two (2) Judicial Commissioners for a one (1) year term, commencing
May 1, 2015, and expiring April 30, 2016; designating a Chief Judicial Commissioner and
establishing the compensation to be received by each during their respective term(s) in office.

Res. No. 415-3 A Resolution to authorize the County Mayor to accept the donation of first aid related items from
the International Brotherhood of Police Officers (IBPO) with an estimated value of $1,498.

Res. No. 415-4 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to sign a contract amendment with the State of
Tennessee Department of Human Services and the Hamilton County Juvenile Court Title IV-D
Child Support Division.

Res. No. 415-5 A Resolution approving the extension of the contract between Hamilton County and First
Tennessee Bank to provide banking services and lock box payment processing services for the
County Trustee for a period of up to two (2) years beginning June 8, 2015 and authorizing the
County Trustee to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 415-6 A Resolution accepting the bids of CWC, LLC and NOI Chattanooga for furniture for the Criminal
and Sessions Courts amounting to $81,857.23 and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any
contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 415-7 A Resolution accepting the unit price bid of PCMG, Inc. for Microsoft Client Access licenses and
Windows Server licenses, beginning May 15, 2015 through May 14, 2016, with the option to
renew for one (1) additional one (1) year term, for the Information Technology Services
Department and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this
Resolution.

Res. No. 415-8 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor on behalf of Hamilton County, Tennessee, the
Health Services Division, operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department to
sign a reimbursement contract with United Health Care plan of the River Valley, Inc. for health
services provided by the Health Department effective April 1, 2015.

Res. No. 415-9 A Resolution accepting the bid of EVS Emergency Vehicle Specialist for one (1) year contract
unit pricing, beginning April 17, 2015, through April 16, 2016, for protective clothing for
Emergency Medical Services and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary
to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 415-10 A Resolution accepting the bid of Blackfox Tactical for one (1) year contract pricing, beginning
April 17, 2015, through April 16, 2016, for body armor and equipment for Emergency Medical
Services and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this
Resolution.

Res. No. 415-11 A Resolution to amend the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” so as to change the
roadway name for the following district road:  Eliz Crest Road to Elizabeth Crest Road.



Res. No. 415-12 A Resolution accepting the bids of Sherwin Williams Company and Ennis Paint, Inc. for one (1)
year contract pricing, beginning May 1, 2015, through April 30, 2016, for waterborne highway
traffic paint and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this
Resolution.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MARCH 12, 2015 
 

 1

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  March 12, 2015 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 12th day of March, 2015, a Recessed 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at 

the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, 

when the following proceedings were held, to wit: -- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman.  County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner Haynes, 

Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Fields. Commissioner Beck and 

Commissioner Mackey arrived after the roll was called.  Commissioner Boyd was 

absent.  Total present – 8.  Total absent -1.  

 

Chairman Fields reported Commissioner Boyd was in the hospital and he 

would not be in attendence today. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his  

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill 

McGriff. 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MARCH 12, 2015 
 

 2

 

Commissioner Fields introduced Pastor Mike Steele, Crossroads Baptist 

Church, who gave the invocation.  Commissioner Fields led in the pledge to the 

flag. 

 

Chairman Fields announced that there was not any scheduled business 

for the Recessed Meeting and asked if anyone had any announcements. 

 

 

Being no further business Chairman Fields declared the recessed meeting 

adjourned. 

 

 

    Respectfully submitted: 

      

____________________________________    
    William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

 

Approved: 

 

____ 
Date      Clerk’s Initials 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 12, 2015 
 
 

 1

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  March 12, 2015 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 12th day of March, 2015, an Agenda 

Preparation Session of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and 

held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, 

when the following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman. County Clerk Bill 

Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner Haynes, 

Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Fields.  Commissioner 

Boyd was absent. Total present - 8.  Total absent – 1. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 12, 2015 
 
 

 2

PROCLAMATION – UT / TSU EXTENSION MONTH 

 

 At this time Mayor Coppinger introduced Nancy Rucker, UT Extension Agent and 

County Director and asked Deputy Clerk Brooke Weaver to read the Proclamation into 

the record. 

 

 Mayor Coppinger presented a Proclamation that the month of March, 2015 be 

known as “UT/TSU Extension Month”. The University of Tennessee and Tennessee 

State University are Tennessee’s land-grant universities, and have a three-part mission 

of teaching, research, and Extension. Extension is a national educational program 

supported by USDA through the nation’s land-grant universities and administered with 

funding from state and local governments in Tennessee through offices in each of the 

state’s 95 counties.  

 

 Extension means ‘reaching out,’ and University of Tennessee Extension extends 

the university’s teaching and research missions to deliver research-based information 

and education to all the state’s citizens through youth and adult programs in Hamilton 

County. Extension’s programs can be seen in Tennessee as an excellent investment of 

public resources. The statewide educational programs in 4-H youth development, 

agriculture and natural resources, family and consumer sciences, and community 

economic development are estimated to impact the state’s economy by more than $493 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 12, 2015 
 
 

 3

million from July 1, 2013, through June 30, 2014. This amounts to a return of investment 

of $8.13 for every $1 in public funds invested in Tennessee Extension. 

 

 Nancy Rucker spoke regarding Extension’s mission and introduced fellow staff 

members that were present for the proclamation, Jean Puett, Family & Consumer 

Science Extension Agent, Faith Bolin, Secretary, Janice Hartman, Supplemental 

Nutrition Assistantship Program Extension Agent, Tom Stebbins, Agriculture 

Horticulture Master Gardener Extension Agent, Keith Bridges, 4-H Youth Development 

Extension Agent, Katie Bishop Horticulture Program Assistant.   

 

 Ms. Rucker and fellow staff members were personally congratulated and shook 

hands with members of the Commission.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 12, 2015 
 
 

 4

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields indicated the upcoming agenda items would be considered as 

follows: 

 An Order of Designation to the Planning Commission would be submitted as a 
matter of record. 

 A Report confirming the reappointment of Kenneth W. Rich as a Commissioner 
to the Hixson Utility District’s Board of Commissioners would be submitted as a 
matter of record.  

 Juvenile Court Clerk reports for November and December 2014 would be 
submitted for the record. 

 Resolution No. 315-15 was the usual County Clerk item regarding notaries. This 
required no committee assignment. 

 Resolution Nos. 315-16, 315-19, 315-20, 315-26 through 315-31, 315-33, 315-
34, 315-38 through 315-41 were assigned to the Finance Committee, chaired by 
Commissioner Graham. 

 Resolution Nos. 315-17, 315-18, 315-32, 315-35, 315-36, 315-37, 315-42, and 
315-43 was heard by a Committee of the Whole. 

 Resolution Nos. 315-21 through 315-23, 315-25A, 315-25B were assigned to the 
Zoning Committee, chaired by Commissioner Haynes. 

 

 Chairman Fields stated that Resolution No. 315-17 would now be heard by the 

Committee of the Whole. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 315-17 

 

Sheriff Jim Hammond spoke regarding this item, which would accept a donation 

in the amount of $12,500 from the AEGIS Foundation of Greater Chattanooga to 

purchase body worn cameras and related equipment upon selected patrol officers. It 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 12, 2015 
 
 

 5

was noted that body worn cameras have been proven to protect both officers and the 

general public from possible false or misleading allegations which may arise while 

carrying out the duties of law enforcement. 

 

In response to Commissioner Beck’s question, Sheriff Hammond confirmed that 

this is a trial run to test how useful body worn cameras will be in law enforcement. 

Sheriff Hammond added that the cameras would be a proactive approach to attempting 

to prevent any misleading and false accusations against officers. 

 

In response to several questions from the Commission, Sheriff Hammond 

reported 6 – 8 body cameras will be used in the trial run and docking equipment will 

need to be purchased to upload the media. Policy and procedures regarding when the 

officers turns on and uses the cameras is still in the works. In closing, the significance of 

body cameras was discussed, and if approved, no county funds are needed to conduct 

the beta test.  

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 315-18 

 

Sheriff Hammond spoke regarding this item, which would accept the proposal of 

Securus Technologies to provide inmate video visitation for the Hamilton County Jail. 

This service would result in both a cost savings to the Sheriff’s office by reducing 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 12, 2015 
 
 

 6

corrections officers hours necessary to move inmates to the visitation area, as well as 

generate revenue from the County’s share of the commission from the call charges to 

the visitor. It was noted that County funds will not be required to support this service.  

 

Don Gorman, Director of Administration for the Sheriff’s Department spoke 

regarding this item and clarified that the video visitation services are self-funded through 

call charges to the visitor. He also added that on January 15, 2014, the Commission 

approved Resolution No. 114-8, which accepted the proposal of Edge Access, Inc, a 

video visitation provider, who has since filed bankruptcy and is no longer in business.  

He indicated he was thankful Edge Access never installed the inmate video visitation 

systems because it would have no longer been useable. 

 

In response to several of the Commissioner’s concerns, Sheriff Hammond and 

Mr. Gorman provided details regarding confidentiality, monitoring, and accessibility of 

the inmate video visitation service.  Mr. Gorman reported that six video visitation 

stations will be installed and scheduled home based visits will be charge $15.00 for 30 

minutes of visitation.  

 

Bill Jainini, a SECURUS Technologies representative, discussed the details of 

the contract and reported that software upgrades and maintenance will be provided at 

no cost to the County. He also reported SECURUS’ strong financial backing and history.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 12, 2015 
 
 

 7

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 315-32 

 

Albert Kiser, Administrator of Finance, spoke regarding this item which would add 

hazardous materials/waste remediation services to the list of professional, technical, 

and consultant services that may be obtained subject to section 4.2.4K of the 

purchasing rules for Hamilton County.  

 

In response to Commissioner Graham’s question, Chairman Fields announced 

that Mr. Jainini, the SECURUS Technologies representative wouldn’t be required to 

attend next week’s Commission meeting. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 315-35 through 315-37 

 

Albert Kiser, Administrator of Finance, spoke regarding Resolution No. 315-35 

and noted that Resolution Nos. 315- 36 and 315-37 should be considered together. 

 

At this time Chairman Fields asked that Resolutions 315-36 and 315-37 be read 

into the record. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 12, 2015 
 
 

 8

Mayor Coppinger spoke regarding these three items, which would adopt the 

State Employees and Teachers Hybrid Plan for new employees beginning October 1, 

2015, allow the County to contribute to a tax deferred retirement plan 401(k), and select 

the state tax deferred retirement plan 401(k). He clarified that the Hybrid Pension Plan 

will affect new employees only. Current employees will now have the added benefit of 

being able to contribute to a 401(k) plan.  

 

In closing Mayor Coppinger noted that this was a time sensitive item and if 

approved would result in cost savings due to the difference in county contributions to 

employee retirement.  

 

Lee Brouner, Assistant Administrator of Finance, gave an explanation of the 

Hybrid Pension Plan handout the Commission received. A copy of this handout was 

given to the Clerk’s office.  He highlighted that the current county contribution rate is 

14.33%, the State Hybrid Plan combined contribution rate is nine percent, with the 

employee contributing an additional five percent to the defined benefit (TCRS) plan. The 

Hybrid Pension Plan contribution rate will be locked in at nine percent for ten years. The 

current plan is non-contributory by employees; the Hybrid plan requires employee 

contributions. In closing he reiterated that current employees will not be affected and 

they will remain on the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS).  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 12, 2015 
 
 

 9

In response to Commissioner Fairbanks and Commissioner Graham’s 

comments, Mr. Brouner pointed out an added benefit of the defined contribution plan is 

contributions are refundable, plus five percent, to all employees leaving with less than 

five years of service. He also confirmed the Hybrid plan requires employee contribution 

of five percent to the defined benefit (TCRS) component. 

 

Drew Freeman, East Tennessee Regional Outreach Specialist with the 

Tennessee Department of Treasury, spoke regarding the State Hybrid Plan. He noted 

new employees at state level, new employees at Chattanooga State College, and new 

teachers are all on the State Hybrid plan. 

 

 Kaci Lantz, Director of the Defined Contribution Plans with the State of 

Tennessee clarified that employees may contribute a yearly maximum of $18,000 to the 

current Nationwide 457(b) plan and $18,000 to the new 401(k) plan. There is also a 

catch up provision for both plans. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 315-42 

 

 Attorney Taylor spoke regarding this item, which would appropriate twenty 

thousand dollars to the Mountain Education Foundation (MEF) from the discretionary 

funds of Commission district two. MEF provides financial assistance for items such as 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 12, 2015 
 
 

 10

books, computer equipment, art instruction, teachers, and other education resources to 

the students attending Hamilton County public schools located on Signal Mountain. 

Commissioner Fields has expressed a desire to assist MEF. He noted the caption on 

the agenda for this Resolution was incorrect and it was being corrected to reflect the 

funds coming from discretionary monies. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 315-43 

 

Mayor Coppinger spoke regarding this item, which would make certain findings 

relating to the Choo Choo Partners, LP project, to delegate certain authority to the 

Health, Educational, and Housing Facility Board of the City of Chattanooga, Tennessee, 

and to authorize the County Mayor to enter into and execute an agreement for 

payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes (PILOT). Choo Choo Partners, LP is 

contemplating the conversion of an existing hotel structure (Building 2) located on the 

Chattanooga Choo Choo property at 1400 Market Street into residential multi-family 

rental property consisting of ninety-seven units.  

 

Mayor Coppinger spoke in general about PILOT agreements and emphasized 

the success Hamilton County has experienced.  He reminded the public that in addition 

to growth and additional jobs created, properties have been added to the tax rolls, and 

the school system receives one-hundred percent of their education portion.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 12, 2015 
 
 

 11

 

He emphasized the fact that Hamilton County must consider PILOT agreements 

to remain competitive with other counties as well as other states to attract new 

developments, and encourage expansions of existing businesses. Mayor Coppinger 

specifically noted that the Enterprise South property prior to becoming a successful 

industrial and business development was a non-tax producing site owned by the U.S. 

government.   

 

Attorney Taylor noted the proposed PILOT agreement attached to Resolution No. 

315-43 had been modified to included changes that haven’t been present in previous 

residential PILOT agreements.  These changes were in response to discussions 

between the public, city, and county officials. 

 

Commissioner Beck, Chairman of the Building and Economic Development 

Committee, reminded everyone that his committee would be meeting after today’s 

meeting to discuss the future of residential pilot programs in Hamilton County. He asked 

everyone to keep their comments about pilot policy until the committee meeting and 

speak only about this particular pilot at this time. 

 

Kim White, River City Company President and CEO, spoke about the demand for 

downtown workforce housing and gave details regarding the Choo Choo Partners, LP 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 12, 2015 
 
 

 12

project.  The aim of the project is to attract young professionals to live downtown. It was 

noted that the Choo Choo Partners, LP project would provide substantial public welfare 

benefits to the City and County.  

 

In response to Commissioner Haynes question, Attorney Taylor stated that the 

PILOT agreement changes will (1) prevent the PILOT from automatically transferring to 

a new owner if the property is sold; (2) require Choo Choo partners to submit an annual 

report to city and county officials disclosing the amount invested at the site and provide 

a certified roll of rents in the building, and (3) strengthen claw-back provisions that allow 

county and city officials more discretion with limiting or ending the agreement if 

investment and rent commitments aren’t met. 

 

Commissioner Graham said he would be attending the Building and Economic 

Development Committee to further discuss PILOT agreements. For full disclosure 

purposes, he publicly acknowledged the Choo Choo Partners PILOT was located in his 

district and that he was a current member of the River City Board. 

 

Commissioner Graham, Chairman of the Finance Committee announced that the 

Finance Committee would meet in the Commission Room immediately after today’s 

commission meeting. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 12, 2015 
 
 

 13

Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Zoning Committee announced that the 

Zoning Committee would meet in the conference room immediately after today’s 

commission meeting. 

 

To accommodate members of the audience, Commissioner Beck, Chairman of 

the Building and Economic Development Committee, announced that the committee 

would meet in the Commission Room after the Finance Committee. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for announcements from members of the Commission. 

 

Commissioner Mackey spoke about a recent news article published by the 

Chattanooga Times Free Press regarding Commission meeting rules and public 

speaking.  He stated he wants the voice of the people to be heard and asked the 

Commission to consider publishing the agenda in advance. Advance notice would allow 

the public to attend the agenda session and the following committee meetings where 

their voice should be heard. 

 

Commissioner Graham publicly gave out his cell phone number, 423-255-6601, 

and encouraged the public to call him with any concerns they may have. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 12, 2015 
 
 

 14

 

Commissioner Graham invited everyone to attend the second annual St. Chatty’s 

Day parade, March 14, which starts at noon on Riverfront Parkway at Power Alley.  

 

Commissioner Graham announced that Lookout Valley’s Elementary spring 

annual carnival begins March 14 at 10:00 am to March 15 at 2:00 pm. He encouraged 

everyone to get involved with their local recreation center. 

 

Commissioner Fairbanks spoke regarding a recent news article published by the 

Chattanooga Times Free Press regarding County Engineer, Todd E. Leamon, who was 

named the 2015 Jo Conn Guild "Outstanding Engineer of the Year".  This is the highest 

award given to an individual by The Chattanooga Area E-Week Committee. It is 

presented to an engineer who has made outstanding professional contributions to 

his/her profession, public welfare and/or humankind. A round of applause was given to 

Mr. Leamon, who was present at today’s meeting.  

 

Commissioner Beck personally thanked the Commission staff, Patricia Moore 

and Melinda Volker, for the hard work they do on a daily basis.  

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 12, 2015 
 
 

 15

In response to Commissioner Smedley’s inquiry, Mayor Coppinger stated The 

2015 Tri-State Home Show will take place March 13th, 14th, 10 a.m. – 8 p.m. and 

March 15th 11 a.m. – 5 p.m. at the Convention and Trade Center.  The Tri-State Home 

Show is one of the most respected in the construction trade, retail home products and 

service industry.  He congratulated Mr. Leamon and thanked every department in 

county government for their dedication and hard work. 

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. 

 

Bill McGriff, County Auditor, addressed the Commission and recommended an 

Audit Committee meeting take place March 25th after the agenda session. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 12, 2015 
 
 

 16

In response to Mr. McGriff’s request, Chairman Fields agreed to have an Audit 

Committee meeting on March 25th after the Agenda Session; Attorney Taylor confirmed 

the announcement qualified as a public notice. 

 

Being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting adjourned until 

Wednesday, March 18th at 9:30 AM. 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

      

      _________________________________   
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 
 

________  
Date     Clerk’s Initials 
 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 18, 2015 
 

1 

 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Regular Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  March 18, 2015 
 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 18th day of March, 2015, a Regular Meeting 

of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman. County Clerk Bill 

Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names: Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Fields. Commissioner Haynes was in 

the office and arrived moments after the roll call was called. Total present – 9. Total 

absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 18, 2015 
 

2 

 

Commissioner Fields introduced Pastor Travis A. Sharpe, GraceBridge Church, 

who gave the invocation. Commissioner Fields led in the pledge to the flag. 

  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, 

that the minutes of the Recessed Meeting of February 25, 2015, the Agenda 

Preparation Session of February 25, 2015, the Regular Meeting of March 4, 2015, be 

approved, treat same as read, made a matter of record and filed. The foregoing Motion 

was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total 

present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

ORDER OF DESIGNATION 

 

 An order was submitted for the record designating Todd Leamon to sit as the 

County Mayor’s representative on the Planning Commission for the meeting of March 9, 

2015. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 18, 2015 
 

3 

 

ORDER OF REAPPOINTMENT 

 

 County Mayor Coppinger submitted for the record an Order reappointing Kenneth 

W. Rich to the Hixson Utility District Board of Commissioners to serve a four-year term 

expiring June 14, 2018. 

 

JUVENILE COURT CLERK REPORTS 

  

The Juvenile Court Clerk reports for November and December 2014 were 

submitted and made a matter of record. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-15  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Graham, 

to adopt Resolution No. 315-15. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on 

a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present 

and voting as follows: Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total 

“Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” votes – 0. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 18, 2015 
 

4 

 

 

Resolution Nos. 315-17, 315-18, 315-32, 315-35 through 315-37, 315-42, and 

315-43 were heard by the Committee of the Whole. Chairman Fields asked that 

Resolution No. 315-17 be considered at this time.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-17  A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT A DONATION IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $12,500 FROM THE AEGIS FOUNDATION OF GREATER 

CHATTANOOGA TO BE USED TO PURCHASE BODY CAMERAS AND 

ASSOCIATED EQUIPMENT UPON SELECTED PATROL OFFICERS. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 315-17. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total 

“Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 18, 2015 
 

5 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-18  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL OF 

SECURUS TECHNOLOGIES TO PROVIDE INMATE VIDEO VISITATION FOR THE 

HAMILTON COUNTY JAIL AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 

ANY CONTRACT NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 315-18. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total 

“Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-32  A RESOLUTION ADDING HAZARDOUS 

MATERIALS/WASTE REMEDIATION SERVICES TO THE LIST OF PROFESSIONAL, 

TECHNICAL, AND CONSULTANT SERVICES THAT MAY BE OBTAINED SUBJECT 

TO SECTION 4.2.4.K OF THE PURCHASING RULES FOR HAMILTON COUNTY. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolution No. 315-32. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 18, 2015 
 

6 

 

voting as follows: Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total 

“Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Fields asked that Resolution Nos. 315-35 through 315-37 be 

considered together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-35  A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE AN EMPLOYER 

PARTICIPATING IN THE TENNESSEE CONSOLIDATED RETIREMENT SYSTEM TO 

CHANGE FROM ITS EXISTING REGULAR DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN TO EITHER 

THE ALTERNATE DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OR THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT 

HYBRID PLAN IN ACCORDANCE WITH TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED, TITLE 8, 

CHAPTER 35, PART 2, OR TO THE HYBRID RETIREMENT PLAN FOR STATE 

EMPLOYEES AND TEACHERS IN ACCORDANCE WITH TENNESSEE CODE 

ANNOTATED, TITLE 8, CHAPTER 36, PART 9.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-36  A RESOLUTION TO ALLOW A POLITICAL 

SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE OF TENNESSEE TO CONTRIBUTE TO A TAX 

DEFERRED RETIREMENT PLAN IN ACCORDANCE WITH TENNESSEE CODE 

ANNOTATED, TITLE 8, CHAPTERS 34-37.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 18, 2015 
 

7 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-37  A RESOLUTION TO PARTICIPATE IN A 401(K) 

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN OFFERED BY THE STATE OF TENNESSEE 

PURSUANT TO TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED, SECTION 8-25-111(A).  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Graham, 

to adopt Resolution Nos. 315-35, 315-36, and 315-37.  

 

There was no indication that any Commissioner wished for one of these items to 

be heard separately. 

 

The foregoing Resolutions were adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 18, 2015 
 

8 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-42  A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING TWENTY 

THOUSAND DOLLARS ($20,000.00) TO THE MOUNTAIN EDUCATION 

FOUNDATION FROM THE DISCRETIONARY FUNDS OF COMMISSION DISTRICT 

TWO. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fairbanks, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolution No. 315-42. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total 

“Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-43  A RESOLUTION TO MAKE CERTAIN FINDINGS 

RELATING TO THE CHOO CHOO PARTNERS, LP PROJECT, TO DELEGATE 

CERTAIN AUTHORITY TO THE HEALTH, EDUCATIONAL, AND HOUSING 

FACILITY BOARD OF THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA, TENNESSEE, AND TO 

AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE AN 

AGREEMENT FOR PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 18, 2015 
 

9 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Beck, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 315-43.  

 

Commissioner Boyd spoke at length in opposition to this particular housing 

PILOT program. He submitted for the record documents containing his findings on 

PILOT agreements, qualifications for PILOT programs, and guidelines for when the 

Commission should approve them.  

  

Commissioner Graham publicly acknowledged that he is a current member of the 

River City Board. He thanked Commissioner Beck for the discussion that took place at 

last week’s Building and Economic Development Committee meeting. He also thanked 

citizen activist, Helen Burns Sharp, for her participation in the discussion at last week’s 

Building and Economic Development Committee. Helen Burns Sharp provided a copy of 

her comments to the Clerk’s office. 

  

In response to Commissioner Graham’s question, Attorney Taylor stated that the 

PILOT agreement changes will (1) prevent the PILOT from automatically transferring to 

a new owner if the property is sold; (2) require Choo Choo partners to submit an annual 

report to city and county officials disclosing the amount invested at the site and provide 

a certified roll of rents in the building, and (3) strengthen claw-back provisions that allow 

county and city officials more discretion with limiting or ending the agreement if 

investment and rent commitments are not met. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 18, 2015 
 

10 

 

 

In response to Chairman Fields question, Attorney Taylor clarified that the 

amended resolution identifies the real property site in Exhibit A attached to the 

agreement for payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes. A copy of the revision was also 

provided to the Clerk’s office. 

 

Commissioner Smedley added that multiple members of District 7 reached out to 

ask her to vote against this item, and for that reason, she would not be supporting 

Resolution No. 315-43.  

 

Commissioner Fields asked if there were any members of the audience that 

wished to speak about this Resolution. He noted that each individual would be allowed 

three minutes to speak on each side of the issue with a ten minute limit for speakers 

favoring the item and ten minutes for speakers opposing the item of the three minutes 

per person, total of 10 minutes per side of the issue. 

 

Bill Reesor residing at 1404 Woodway Drive Ooltewah, TN 37363 and Mark West 

at 2315 Heavenly View Drive Ooltewah, TN 37363 spoke in opposition to Resolution 

315-43. Both expressed concern about PILOT programs being abused and misused, 

and encouraged members of the Commission to vote against them.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 18, 2015 
 

11 

 

Kim White, River City Company President and CEO, spoke about the demand for 

downtown workforce housing and gave details regarding the Choo Choo Partners, LP 

project. She added that the supply for workforce housing in downtown Chattanooga is 

not sufficiently meeting demand.  

 

Commissioner Fairbanks stated that he has received multiple phone calls and 

emails regarding Resolution No. 315-43. He added that after many discussions with his 

constituents, it was evident the public did not have all the facts about PILOT programs.   

 

Commissioner Haynes spoke briefly about the supply and demand for workforce 

housing in downtown Chattanooga. In closing, he noted that when a PILOT agreement 

is passed the school portion of the tax base increases and the school system receives 

one-hundred percent of their education portion. 

 

Commissioner Graham publicly gave out his cell phone number, 423-255-6601, 

and encouraged the public to call him with any concerns they may have. He 

emphasized PILOT agreements allow Hamilton County to remain competitive, attract 

new developments, and encourage expansions of existing businesses.  

 

The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Nay”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 18, 2015 
 

12 

 

“Nay”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Nay”; and 

Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 6. Total 

“Nay” votes – 3. 

 

Chairman Fields asked that Resolution No. 315-21 through 315-24, 315-25A, 

and 315-25B be considered at this time.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-21  A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM R2-A RURAL 

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO M-2 WHOLESALE AND LIGHT INDUSTRY DISTRICT, 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 8537 HIGHWAY 58. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-22  A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM A-1 

AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT TO R-1 SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, 

PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 7527 AND 7579 MCDANIEL LANE AND 8324 

PROVIDENCE ROAD. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-23  A RESOLUTION GRANTING A SPECIAL PERMIT FOR A 

RESIDENTIAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT FOR PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 

7527 AND 7579 MCDANIEL LANE AND 8324 PROVIDENCE ROAD. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 18, 2015 
 

13 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-24  A RESOLUTION GRANTING A SPECIAL PERMIT FOR A 

RESIDENTIAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT FOR PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 

2607 & 2631 OOLTEWAH-RINGGOLD ROAD. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-25A  A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM R-2A RURAL 

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT & R-3 APARTMENT-TOWNHOUSE DISTRICT TO C-2 

LOCAL BUSINESS COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 8603 

AND 8699 NORTH HICKORY VALLEY ROAD. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-25B  A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM R-2A RURAL 

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT & R-3 APARTMENT-TOWNHOUSE DISTRICT TO C-2 

LOCAL BUSINESS COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 8603 

AND 8699 NORTH HICKORY VALLEY ROAD. 

 

Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Zoning Committee, reported no action 

would be taken on Resolution No. 315-25A. He asked that Resolution No. 315-21 be 

heard separately and provided details about this Resolution. He noted there was no 

opposition and the Zoning Committee recommended approval.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

adopt Resolution No. 315-21. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 18, 2015 
 

14 

 

 Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion regarding this item from 

members of the Commission or the public. There was none.  

 

The foregoing Resolution was  adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner Beck and Commissioner 

Graham were absent for the vote. Total present – 7. Total absent – 2. Total “Aye” votes 

– 7. Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Zoning Committee, spoke regarding 

Resolution Nos. 315-22 and 315-23. He noted there was no opposition and the Zoning 

Committee recommended approval. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution Nos. 315-22 and 315-23.  

 

Chairman Fields asked if there was any discussion regarding this item from 

Commissioners or the public. There was none. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 18, 2015 
 

15 

 

The foregoing Resolutions were unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with 

the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9. Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. 

 

Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Zoning Committee, spoke regarding 

Resolution No. 315-24 and noted it had been amended and assigned the number 315-

24B. 

 

Clerk Knowles stated that a typed copy of the resolution had been provided by 

Planning Commission Director John Bridger. He requested that a copy be submitted to  

the Clerk’s office in proper format.  

 

In response to Chairman Fields question, Commissioner Haynes clarified that the 

amended Resolution contains a secondary gated entrance on the property for service 

trucks.  

 

 Commissioner Smedley thanked the developer for his willingness to hold a 

community meeting to address any concerns that may have existed. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 18, 2015 
 

16 

 

 

In response to Commissioner Mackey’s question, Commissioner Haynes 

confirmed that the Zoning Committee’s decision to support this Resolution was 

unanimous.  

 

Chairman Fields asked if any members of the audience wished to speak about 

this Resolution.  

 

Thomas Cook at 9215 Quail Mountain Drive Chattanooga, TN 37421, spoke in 

opposition of Resolution 315-24B. He stated the project was in violation of the Planning 

Commission’s land use plans for where townhomes should be developed. He also 

voiced his concerns about water issues and his desire to see the County move forward 

with storm water controls.  

 

At this time, Deputy Clerk Brooke Weaver read Resolution 315-24B into the 

record.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-24B  A RESOLUTION GRANTING A SPECIAL PERMIT FOR 

A RESIDENTIAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT FOR PROPERTIES LOCATED 

AT 2607 & 2631 OOLTEWAH-RINGGOLD ROAD. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 18, 2015 
 

17 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 315-24B.  

 

In response to Commissioner Mackey’s question, Mr. Cook explained that he 

would support a development that he considered a positive change for the community. 

 

In response to Commissioner Smedley’s question about storm water issues, 

County Engineer, Todd Leamon, clarified that there are water quality standards that 

must be met.  

 

Commissioner Boyd spoke about his support for Planned Unit Developments 

(PUDs) in Hamilton County. He stated that it would increase property values, and that 

the Commission should support more of these developments.  

 

Commissioner Fairbanks encouraged developers to talk to the community before 

proposing new developments to make sure they understand all the facts of the projects.  

  

In response to Commissioner Fairbanks suggestion, Planning Director Bridger 

stated that they always encourage developers to meet with the community.   

 

Commissioner Haynes added that getting information to citizens living in 

unincorporated neighborhoods is challenging.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 18, 2015 
 

18 

 

The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. 

Commissioner Beck was absent. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes – 

8. Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Fields noted Commissioner Beck would be absent for the remainder of 

the meeting. 

 

Commissioner Haynes provided details regarding Resolution No. 315-25B, and 

stated the Zoning Committee reviewed, recommended approval, and there was no 

opposition.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 315-25B. 

 

Commissioner Fields asked if there were any members of the audience that 

wished to speak about this Resolution. There was none. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 18, 2015 
 

19 

 

The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. 

Commissioner Beck was absent. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes – 

8. Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Fields asked that Resolution Nos. 315-16, 315-19, 315-20, 315-26 

through 315-31, 315-33, 315-34, and 315-38 through 315-41 be considered at this time.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-16  A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR 

AND COUNTY CLERK TO RENEW A CONTRACT WITH BUSINESS INFORMATION 

SYSTEMS (BIS) FOR THE ANNUAL MAINTENANCE OF A MOTOR VEHICLE 

SYSTEM SOFTWARE PACKAGE FOR A CONTRACT PERIOD ENDING JUNE 30, 

2020 AT A COST OF $15,000.00 ANNUALLY. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-19  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF ACME 

SUPPLY COMPANY, LTD., BOB BARKER COMPANY, INC., HBD INC. DBA 

PACIFIC CONCEPTS, ICS JAIL SUPPLIES, INC., CAROLINA TEXTILES, IDEL 

INTERNATIONAL TRADING, INC., AND UNIFORM MANUFACTURING, INC., FOR 

ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING MARCH 20, 2015, THROUGH 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 18, 2015 
 

20 

 

MARCH 19, 2016, FOR CLOTHING AND MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS FOR THE 

SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 

ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-20  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL OF 

HARWOOD INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION FOR A STORAGE AREA NETWORK 

(SAN) SOLUTION AMOUNTING TO $73,647.90 FOR THE SHERIFF’S 

DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-26  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE UNIT PRICE BIDS OF 

MXN CORPORATION AND CMS COMMUNICATIONS BEGINNING MARCH 18, 

2015, THROUGH NOVEMBER 18, 2015, FOR HP DATA COMMUNICATIONS 

EQUIPMENT FOR THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-27  A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY FOR HAMILTON COUNTY TO 

ENTER INTO A CONSULTING AGREEMENT WITH RUSS BLAKELY & 

ASSOCIATES, LLC AT AN ANNUAL COST OF $11,000. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 18, 2015 
 

21 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-28  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF LEE SMITH, 

INC. FOR TWO (2) SINGLE AXLE DUMP TRUCKS AND EQUIPMENT AMOUNTING 

TO $247,652.00 FOR THE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE 

COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-29  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF BARKY 

BEAVER MULCH & SOIL, INC. AND BLISS PRODUCTS & SERVICES, INC. FOR 

CONTRACT UNIT PRICING, BEGINNING MARCH 18, 2015, THROUGH MARCH 17, 

2017, FOR WOODCARPET FOR PLAYGROUNDS AND AUTHORIZING THE 

COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-30  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF NAFECO 

FOR SIX (6) FIRE TRAINING AIR PACKS AMOUNTING TO $33,660.00 FOR 

EMERGENCY SERVICES AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 

ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-31  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF SPECIAL 

TOUCH LAWN CARE SERVICE FOR ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT PRICING, 

BEGINNING APRIL 6, 2015, THROUGH APRIL 5, 2016, FOR LANDSCAPE 

MAINTENANCE FOR EMS STATIONS AND SHERIFF’S ANNEXES FOR THE 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 18, 2015 
 

22 

 

RECREATION DEPARTMENT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-33  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING HAMILTON COUNTY 

TO MAKE AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL TRANSFER TO THE STATE OF 

TENNESSEE'S TENNCARE PROGRAM IN ORDER TO SECURE ADDITIONAL 

FUNDING FROM THE STATE OF TENNESSEE'S PUBLIC HOSPITAL 

SUPPLEMENTAL PAYMENT POOL ("PHSPP") FOR THE CHATTANOOGA-

HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY ("ERLANGER"). 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-34  A RESOLUTION OF THE LEGISLATIVE BODY OF 

HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF INTEREST-

BEARING GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2015A OF HAMILTON 

COUNTY, TENNESSEE IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $75,000,000 AND 

INTEREST-BEARING GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 

2015B OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 

$57,000,000; AND PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE BONDS. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-38  A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE STATE OF TENNESSEE, 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, HEALTH 

SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 18, 2015 
 

23 

 

HEALTH DEPARTMENT FOR THE PROVISION OF A TOBACCO USE PREVENTION 

PROGRAM, USING FUNDS FROM THE STATE OF TENNESSEE, DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH IN THE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $79,400.00 FOR THE PERIOD 

BEGINNING APRIL 1, 2015, ENDING MARCH 31, 2017, WHICH INCLUDES 

$13,700.00 THAT IS ALREADY BUDGETED FOR THE CURRENT FISCAL YEAR 

ENDING JUNE 30, 2015. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-39  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO SIGN A CONTINUATION CONTRACT WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT 

OF HEALTH AND HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT, FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2015 - 2016 CONTRACT PERIOD, IN AN 

AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $247,500.00 TO PROVIDE HOME VISITS IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH’S CHILDREN’S SPECIAL 

SERVICES (CSS) PROGRAM GUIDELINES. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-40  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 

TO SIGN A CONTINUATION CONTRACT WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT 

OF HEALTH FOR THE TIME PERIOD JULY 1, 2015 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2016, IN 

THE AMOUNT OF $230,000.00 TO PROVIDE FOR THE COORDINATION OF FETAL 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 18, 2015 
 

24 

 

INFANT MORTALITY REVIEW AND COMMUNITY INFANT MORTALITY 

REDUCTION SERVICES IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT 

OF HEALTH’S GUIDELINES. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 315-41  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO ACCEPT A TWO-YEAR $250,000.00 GRANT, BEGINNING APRIL 1, 2015 AND 

ENDING MARCH 31, 2017, FROM THE OFFICE ON VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN 

(OVW) TO CONTINUE SUPERVISED VISITATION AND EXCHANGE SERVICES FOR 

ELIGIBLE FAMILIES. 

 

 Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolution Nos. 315-16, 315-

19, 315-20, 315-26 through 315-31, 315-33, 315-34, and 315-38 through 315-41 and 

stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended approval. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolutions No. 315-16, 315-19, 315-20, 315-26 through 315-31, 315-33, 315-34, 

and 315-38 through 315-41. The foregoing Resolutions were adopted on a Roll Call 

vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting 

as follows: Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 18, 2015 
 

25 

 

“Aye”. Commissioner Beck was absent. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” 

votes – 8. Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

  

Chairman Fields asked for announcements from members of the Commission. 

 

Commissioner Haynes announced that several schools would be holding 

carnivals soon to raise money for the PTA. Commissioner Haynes also spoke about the 

hard work the Commissioners do. He added that he takes offense to accusations of the 

Commission not listening to the public.  

 

 Commissioner Boyd, Chairman of the Education Committee, stated that the joint 

meeting between the Education Committee and the Hamilton County Board of 

Education Facilities Committee took place. He spoke about the success of the meeting, 

and it was noted that at least 100 people attended. 

 

 Commissioner Smedley thanked the Commissioners for their community 

involvement.  

 

 Commissioner Mackey also spoke about public involvement and commended the 

Commissioners for taking the time to listen to their constituents.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 18, 2015 
 

26 

 

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There were 

none. 

 

 There being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting in recess 

until Wednesday, March 25, 2015 at 9:30 AM. 

 

      Respectfully submitted: 

 

 

      _____________________________________ 
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 
 
   

________  
Date  Clerk’s Initials 

























No. 415-1 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 1, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
   A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR 

NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS. 
 
   
WHEREAS, William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to the 

records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled 
HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS have duly 
applied for the positions so sought; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 

1. That the persons named on the listing labeled HAMILTON COUNTY 
NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS are hereby approved as applicants to be 
submitted to the Secretary of State; and 

 
 2. That each such person named on any listing hereinabove mentioned (which listing 

is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby deemed to have 
been individually considered according to the particular matter relating thereto. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER PASSAGE. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 1, 2015 

  
Date 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
APRIL 1, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 1

 
Bettye Alexander Tansey 1621 Roberts Ave. Grant, Konualinka, & Harrison 
 Hixson, TN 37343 633 Chesnut St. 
 423-505-4614 Chattanooga, TN 37450 
  423-756-8400 
 
Sheila K. Bates 1935 McConnell Schl Ln, Apt. 24 Iron Workers Benefit Office 
 Hixson, TN 37343 9217 Dayton Pike 
 N/A Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 
  423-842-1600 
 
Nancy Beene 10713 Grove Place Rd. Regions Bank 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 8535 Hixson Pike 
 423-842-7066 Hixson, TN 37343 
  423-842-0503 
 
Natalie C. Bennett P.O. Box 2075 Chattanooga Pool & Patio, Inc. 
 Hixson, TN 37343 5705 Ringgold Rd. 
 423-535-0555 Chattanooga, TN 37412 
  423-899-6780 
 
Nina S. Boss 253 Mill Hamlet Road, NW. Century Title & Escrow, Inc. 
 Charleston, TN 37310 7047 Lee Highway, Ste. 205 
 423-339-2837 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-894-1890 
 
Linda Bradford 637 Battery Place, Apt. 2 Donny Garner Insurance Agency 
 Chattanooga, TN 37403 4878 South Terrace 
 423-267-9677 Chattanooga, TN 37412 
  423-899-5512 
 
Nicole M. Branch 708 Golden Place Painter Ready 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 1523 E. 27th St. 
 423-305-5594 Chattanooga, TN 37409 
  423-648-4408 
 
Mary Ann Brown 7828 Hixson Pike Synterprise, LLC 
 Hixson, TN 37343 1200 Mountain Creek Rd, Ste. 440 
 423-842-2043 Chattanooga, TN 37405 
  423-267-5363 
 
Shelly J. Cash 1405 Marlboro Ave. Camping World RV Sales 
 Chattanooga, TN 37412 6728 Ringgold Rd. 
 423-718-3055 Chattanooga, TN 37412 
  423-892-8275 
 
Debbie A. Chapman 411 Rolling Hills Dr. TVA 
 Ringgold, GA 30736 1101 Market St, BR 4N 
 706-861-3005 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-751-2100 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
APRIL 1, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 2

 
Rusty J. Clark 6200 Hixson Pike, Apt. 314 CVS Pharmacy 
 Chattanooga, TN 37343 4700 Hwy 58 
 423-653-5046 Chattanooga, TN 37416 
  423-892-8802 
 
Deborah Lynn Collins 182 Winding Creek Cir. Dowis & Boyd CPA 
 Cleveland, TN 37312 P.O. Box 24985 
 423-339-9576 Chattanooga, TN 37422 
  423-892-3831 
 
Kelly S. Cross 1606 Blount Avenue, SW. Easy Money 
 Cleveland, TN 37311 7410 E. Brainerd Rd, Ste. 110 
 423-790-5570 Chattanoog, TN 37421 
  423-933-3750 
 
Laura G. Crow 303 Rolling Ridge Dr. Law Office of Scott D. Bergthold 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 7446 Shallowford Rd, Ste. 202 
 423-987-8548 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-899-3025 
 
Tina Damron 9505 Standifer Gap Rd. AJ's Plumbing & Service, Inc. 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 114 Cedar Ln. 
 423-298-1199 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-510-0676 
 
Darlene Darilek 6110 Pythian Rd. Mei-Aqua Treat, Inc. 
 Harrison, TN 37341 115 Parmenas Ln. 
 423-344-0219 Chattanooga, TN 37405 
  423-499-4919 
 
Lauren Demars 5801 Clark Rd. Choice Title Company 
 Harrison, TN 37341 7703 Nashville St. 
 423-596-6984 Ringgold, GA 30736 
  706-937-6136 
 
Kelsie Donoho 5020 Hunter Village Dr. Cornerstone Community Bank 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 6401 Lee Hwy, Ste. 119 
 423-827-3706 Chattanooga, TN 37363 
  423-385-3011 
 
Angela C. Dowis 9245 Snow Hill Rd. Dowis & Boyd CPAs 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 7047 Lee Highway, Ste. 304 
 423-344-2888 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-892-3831 
 
Whitney Durand 1914 East Brow Rd. Self Employed 
 Signal Mtn, TN 37377 908 James Bldg. 
 423-886-2300 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  N/A 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
APRIL 1, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 3

 
Dub Ellis 56 Apache Trail Hospice of Chattanooga 
 Jasper, TN 37347 4411 Oakwood Dr. 
 423-942-4141 Chattanooga, TN 37416 
  423-892-4289 
 
Donna Gillespie Ensminger 105 Valleybrook Rd. Management Recruiters 
 Hixson, TN 37343 4808 Hixson Pike 
 423-710-2880 Hixson, TN 37343 
  423-877-4040 
 
Debbie Ericson 145 D Harvey Rd. Southern Credit Union 
 Graysville, TN 37338 508 National Ave. 
 N/A Chattanooga, TN 37404 
  423-629-2578 
 
Raymond A. Fox 8053 Rosemere Way First Title Insurance 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 2622 Broad St. 
 423-314-5228 Chattanooga, TN 37408 
  423-265-2507 
 
Patricia A. Goad 6387 Fairview Rd. Sperry Van Ness, et al 
 Hixson, TN 37343 1110 Market St, Ste. 319 
 423-842-1384 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-266-5587 
 
Liz Griffith 5797 Sarah Dr. Century Title & Escrow, Inc. 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 7047 Lee Highway, Ste. 205 
 423-344-1352 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-894-1890 
 
Rebecca L. Guidi 3901 Melinda Dr. Guidi Lawn Care 
 Chattanooga, TN 37416 Same 
 423-987-2886 Same 
  Same 
 
James Lees Hack 1159 Harrison Pk, Apt. 1812 The UPS Store 
 Cleveland, TN 37311 2288 Gunbarrel Rd, Ste. 154 
 574-250-4222 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-499-4440 
 
David Hughes Hampton 603 4th Ave, Apt. 2 Ham Co Dept. of Education 
 Dayton, TN 37321 701 Sequoyah Rd. 
 423-428-9184 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 
  423-332-0060 
 
S. L. Hays 8294 Chula Creek Rd. Crown Chrysler Dodge Jeep Ram 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 2120 Chapman Rd. 
 423-510-8618 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-591-6870 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
APRIL 1, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 4

 
Dawn R. Hendrix 1923A E. 33rd St. New Beginnings Care, LLC 
 Chattanooga, TN 37407 4704 Hixson Pike 
 423-310-7554 Hixson, TN 37343 
  423-877-2024 
 
Laura Herren 4405 Clonts Rd. EMJ Corporation 
 Apison, TN 37302 2034 Hamilton Plc Blvd, Ste. 400 
 423-315-1507 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-855-1550 
 
Sharon G. Hlubek 9122 Mountain Shade Dr. Contemporary Healthcare Capital 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 7201 Shallowford Rd. 
 423-240-4740 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-424-1879 
 
Kathryne L. Hoback 1850 Joseph Terrace Maxi Auto Service 
 Hixson, TN 37343 5229 Hixson Pike 
 423-718-6632 Hixson, TN 37343 
  423-622-8568 
 
Carolyn C. Honeycutt 313 Cornelison Dr. Dowis & Boyd CPA 
 Ringgold, GA 30736 7047 Lee Highway, Ste. 304 
 423-364-0794 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-892-3831 
 
Autumn Horton 11404 N. Oak St. RTB Holdings, LLC 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 1925 Rossville Ave. 
 423-883-5994 Chattanooga, TN 37408 
  423-475-6915 
 
Michelle Hosford 6579 Esquire Ln. Kenco Management Services 
 Hixson, TN 37343 2001 Riverside Dr. 
 423-443-9126 Chattanooga, TN 37406 
  423-643-3275 
 
Vicki W. Jackson 7402 Hamilton Run Dr. Gearhiser, Peters, Elliott, et al 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 320 McCallie Ave. 
 423-499-9826 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-756-5171 
 
Cathy B. Jones 4602 Summit Avenue Ham Co Juvenile Court Clerk 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 1600 East 3rd St. 
 423-877-7333 Chattanooga, TN 37404 
  423-209-5270 
 
Tina Kesler 1107 Hwy 136 Ham Co Juvenile Court Clerk 
 Trenton, GA 30752 1221 E. Main St. 
 423-304-9897 Chattanooga, TN 37408 
  423-209-5970 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
APRIL 1, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 5

 
Linda K. Kilgore 11842 Country Estates Dr. TN Valley Federal Credit Union 
 Apison, TN 37302 P.O. Box 23967 
 N/A Chattanooga, TN 37422 
  423-634-3500 
 
Sherrie W. Kimball 143 S. Aster Avenue Chapter 13 Trustee Office 
 Chattanooga, TN 37419 100 MLK W, Ste. 303 
 423-240-7777 Chattanooga, TN 37401 
  423-265-2261 
 
Julia Knight 8951 Brett Daniel Way N/A 
 Lakesite, TN 37379 N/A 
 423-847-6703 N/A 
  N/A 
 
Amy L. Kurtz 7357 McCormack Dr. Galen Medical Group 
 Hixson, TN 37343 5600 Brainerd Rd, Ste. H-100 
 423-255-6123 Chattanooga, TN 37411 
  423-308-0529 
 
David Lawrence 1716 Ichabod Ln. Lawrence & Lawrence, PLLC 
 Chattanooga, TN 37405 200 East 8th St. 
 423-305-2352 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-756-5031 
 
Kim Loewenstein 545 McColpin Circle HCA Healthcare 
 Whitewell, TN 37397 2205 McCallie Ave. 
 423-667-5453 Chattanooga, TN 37304 
  423-698-2435 
 
S. Kirk Mabry 281 Blue Jay Parkway First Tennessee Bank 
 Ringgold, GA 30736 5914 Highway 58 
 423-593-9059 Harrison, TN 37341 
  423-954-2567 
 
Delena J. Mashburn 4505B Terra Vista Dr. JDK Real Estate (Kenco Group) 
 Chattanooga, TN 37416 2001 Riverside Dr. 
 423-602-7223 Chattanooga, TN 37406 
  423-643-3420 
 
Meredith L. McGarvey 2179 Dugan St. WCA 
 Chattanooga, TN 37412 430 Chesnut St, 4th Floor 
 423-779-2242 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-266-5177 
 
Christopher Morris 821 Woodmore Circle ADM Southern Cellulose 
 Chattanooga, TN 37411 105 W. 45th St. 
 423-987-1109 Chattanooga, TN 37410 
  423-821-1561 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
APRIL 1, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 6

 
David Mullins 46 Parrish Dr. Regions Bank 
 Chickamauga, GA 30707 4538 Highway 58 
 423-488-6101 Chattanooga, TN 37416 
  423-321-6520 
 
Sonja D. Mullins 5606 Kristy Lane City Church of Chattanooga 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 7122 Lee Hwy 
 423-238-3606 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-894-6982 
 
Lisa D. Murphy 1804 Byrds Chapel Rd. WDEF News 12 
 Rising Fawn, GA 30738 3300 Broad St. 
 423-488-4054 Chattanooga, TN 37408 
  423-785-1294 
 
Karen S. Parrott 2714 Gold Point Cir, S. Allstate Insurance 
 Hixson, TN 37343 5251B Highway 153 
 423-774-5083 Hixson, TN 37343 
  423-877-6445 
 
Sharon W. Roberts 4245 Spriggs St. Tri-State Drilling, LLC 
 Chattanooga, TN 37412 6228 Bonny Oaks Dr. 
 423-645-4936 Chattanooga, TN 37416 
  423-510-0110 
 
Shana Sanders 22 S. Germantown Rd, Apt. A4 Massey & Associates, PC 
 Chattanooga, TN 37411 1024 E. ML King Blvd. 
 423-598-8453 Chattanooga, TN 37403 
  423-697-4529 
 
Robert W. Sauser 1821 Auburndale Ave. Law Offices of Robert W. Sauser 
 Chattanooga, TN 37405 300 Forest Ave, Suite C 
 423-267-8095 Chattanooga, TN 37405 
  423-535-9387 
 
Kathryn L. Scheivelhud 43 Edgewood Circle 736 Market St, Ste. 1550 
 Fort Ogelthorpe, GA 30742 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
 423-394-1379 Tidwell, Izell, & Richardson 
  423-602-7511 
 
Susan P. Smith 3327 Oakburr Dr. City of Chattanooga 
 Chattanooga, TN 37419 1250 Market St, Ste. 1000 
 423-551-4084 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-643-5808 
 
Melissa Trulove 220 Ginger Lane Chattanooga Neighborhood Ent. 
 Chickamauga, GA 30707 1500 Chesnut St, Ste. A 
 706-375-5993 Chattanooga, TN 37408 
  423-756-6201 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
APRIL 1, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 7

 
Miranda S. Tyler 664 E. 17th St. RTB Holdings, LLC 
 Chattanooga, TN 37408 1925 Rossville Ave. 
 931-510-9783 Chattanooga, TN 37408 
  423-475-6915 
 
Tracey R. Underwood 1050 Cave Springs Rd. Clear Creek Church of Christ 
 Hixson, TN 37343 5612 Hixson Pike 
 423-580-1656 Hixson, TN 37343 
  423-877-6232 
 
Brenda L. Washington 1610 Miline St. Ham Co Juvenile Court Clerk 
 Chattanooga, TN 37406 1221 East Main St. 
 423-622-5084 Chattanooga, TN 37408 
  423-209-5970 
 
Kim E. Wooten 1722 Long St. Occupational Health Services 
 Chattanooga, TN 37408 2337 McCallie Ave, Ste. 102 
 706-936-1925 Chattanooga, TN 37404 
  423-493-1544 
 
Ann Yearsovich 424 Whitehall Rd. American Bicycle Group 
 Chattanooga, TN 37405 9308 Ooltewah Industrial Dr. 
 423-432-5082 Ooltewah, TN 37363 
  423-591-8830 
 



No. 415-2 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 1, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION RE-APPOINTING TWO (2) JUDICIAL COMMISSIONERS FOR A 
ONE (1) YEAR TERM, COMMENCING MAY 1, 2015, AND EXPIRING APRIL 30, 
2016; DESIGNATING A CHIEF JUDICIAL COMMISSIONER; AND 
ESTABLISHING THE COMPENSATION TO BE RECEIVED BY EACH DURING 
THEIR RESPECTIVE TERM(S) IN OFFICE. 
 
WHEREAS,  in 1999 this County legislative body established the position of Judicial 

Commissioner to assist the General Sessions Court of Hamilton County, 
Tennessee, for a set term of office and at an established salary for each; 
and  

 
WHEREAS,   the current term of office of Randall L. Russell and Sharetta T. Smith as 

Judicial Commissioners expire on April 30, 2015; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Security and Corrections Committee of this legislative body has 

recommended that these two (2) previously appointed individuals (who 
have each expressed their desire to continue to serve) be re-appointed to 
said position(s) for a one (1) year term commencing on May 1, 2015; 
and ending April 30, 2016; and 

 
WHEREAS,   it is now the decision of this legislative body that Randall L. Russell and 

Sharetta T. Smith be re-appointed as Judicial Commissioners; and  
 
WHEREAS,  it is the decision of this County legislative body that Randall L. Russell 

continue in his designated position of Chief Judicial Commissioner with 
such duties and responsibilities as delineated in the Professional 
Employment Agreement(s) hereto attached. 

 
 
 
 



 

 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

That Randall L. Russell and Sharetta T. Smith are hereby re-appointed as Judicial 
Commissioners, for a term commencing May 1, 2015 and ending April 30, 2016, to 
assist the General Sessions Court of Hamilton County, Tennessee, with each receiving 
the present annual compensation of Sixty Two Thousand Six Hundred Seventy Two 
and 49/100 Dollars ($62,672.49), in addition to certain other specified employee 
benefits afforded to Hamilton County employees. 
 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: 
 

That Randall L. Russell is hereby designated and re-appointed as Chief Judicial 
Commissioner with the duties of administering and coordinating all activities and 
scheduling of the Judicial Commissioners (as delineated in the attached Professional 
Employment Agreement), and shall receive additional compensation in the amount of 
Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) per year. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING 
IT. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 1, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 415-3 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 1, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO ACCEPT THE DONATION 
OF FIRST AID RELATED ITEMS FROM THE INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF 
POLICE OFFICERS (IBPO) WITH AN ESTIMATED VALUE OF $1,498.       
 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County recognizes the important contributions of the IBPO who has 
seen a need to supply local law enforcement medical supplies that may be needed at a future 
date; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Office is in need of such supplies which is valued at approximately 
$1,498; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Office of Hamilton County will pay nothing, nor promise any favors 
in consideration for this donation. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the Board of County Commissioners does hereby accept the donation of “First Aid 
Related Supplies” valued at the amount of $1,498 from the IBPO. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 1, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 415-4 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 1, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN A CONTRACT 
AMENDMENT BETWEEN THE STATE OF TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF 
HUMAN SERVICES AND THE HAMILTON COUNTY JUVENILE COURT TITLE 
 IV-D CHILD SUPPORT DIVISION. 
 
WHEREAS, the Tennessee Department of Human Services established a Child Support 

Program to comply with requirements of the Title IV-D of the Social Security 
Act, as enacted by Congress in 1973; and, 

 
WHEREAS, said Department implements this program by entering into contracts with 

Juvenile Courts which have the jurisdiction/duty to hear these types of cases. 
 
WHEREAS, the Tennessee Department of Human Services has established an amount of 

liability to the State in an amount not to exceed $1,493,410.00 for the partial 
reimbursement of the County, for the period of July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2016. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the County Mayor is hereby authorized to enter into, and execute, the attached contract 
which establishes the amount of the State liability for this responsibility in an amount not to 
exceed $1,493,410.00.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 1, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 415-5 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 1, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXTENSION OF THE CONTRACT BETWEEN HAMILTON COUNTY 
AND FIRST TENNESSEE BANK TO PROVIDE BANKING SERVICES AND LOCK BOX PAYMENT 
PROCESSING SERVICES FOR THE COUNTY TRUSTEE FOR A PERIOD OF UP TO TWO (2) YEARS 
BEGINNING JUNE 8, 2015 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY TRUSTEE TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 
NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, proposals were previously received in response to public advertisement to provide a banking 

services and lock box payment processing services and First Tennessee Bank’s proposal was 
recommended and subsequently approved on Resolution 410-6 and 410-7 respectively; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the terms of the request for proposal were for the initial four (4) year period and allowed for 

renewals for up to an additional four (4) years; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution 214-3 approved the renewal of the contract for a one (1) year period; and, 
 
WHEREAS, both First Tennessee Bank and Hamilton County desire to continue the existing  banking 

services and lock box processing services at a competitive rate and fee structure; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the banking services and lock box processing option is in the best interest of   
  Hamilton County and its citizens. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the renewal of the contract between Hamilton County and First Tennessee Bank for a period of up to two (2)  
years, beginning June 8, 2015 for banking services and lock box payment processing services for the County 
Trustee is hereby accepted and authorizing the County Trustee to sign any contract necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 1, 2015 

  
Date 

 





No. 415-6 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 1, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF CWC, LLC AND NOI CHATTANOOGA FOR 
FURNITURE FOR THE CRIMINAL AND SESSIONS COURTS AMOUNTING TO $81,857.23 
AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 
IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for furniture for the Criminal 

and Sessions Courts; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bids from CWC, LLC amounting to $79,834.60 and NOI Chattanooga amounting 

to $2,022.63 were considered to be the lowest and best bids received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, this contract unit pricing will allow other departments to buy off contract for twelve 

months; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of CWC, LLC and NOI Chattanooga for furniture for the Criminal and Sessions Courts 
amounting to $81,857.23 are hereby accepted, said bids being the lowest and best bids received, and 
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 1, 2015 

  
Date 

 









































No. 415-7 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 1, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE UNIT PRICE BID OF PCMG, INC. FOR MICROSOFT 
CLIENT ACCESS LICENSES AND WINDOWS SERVER LICENSES, BEGINNING MAY 15, 2015 
THROUGH MAY 14, 2016, WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW FOR ONE (1) ADDITIONAL ONE 
(1) YEAR TERM, FOR THE INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES DEPARTMENT AND 
AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 
IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS,  bids were received in response to public advertisement for contract unit pricing for 

Microsoft Client Access licenses and Windows Server licenses for the Information 
Technology Services Department; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the bid from PCMG, Inc. was considered to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
   
WHEREAS: there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through the 

operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of PCMG, Inc. for contract unit pricing, beginning May 15, 2015 through May 14, 2016, 
with the option to renew for one (1) additional one (1) year term, for Microsoft Client Access licenses 
and Windows Server licenses for the Information Technology Services Department is hereby accepted, 
said bid being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contract 
necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 1, 2015 

  
Date 

 



























No. 415-8 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 1, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON 
COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE 
CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT TO SIGN A  
REIMBURSEMENT CONTRACT  WITH UNITED HEALTH CARE PLAN OF THE RIVER 
VALLEY, INC. FOR HEALTH SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE HEALTH DEPARTMENT 
EFFECTIVE APRIL 1, 2015. 

 
WHEREAS, the overall objective of the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department 

is to protect the public’s health through programs and health care services; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Tennessee’s Medicaid program, TennCare, has established contracts with 

managed care organizations for the reimbursement of Medicaid eligible 
behavioral health care services; and, 

 
WHEREAS, United Health Care of the River Valley, Inc. is a contracted TennCare 

managed care organization who desires to enter into a reimbursement contract 
with the Health Department for covered services; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  the Health Department provides said services to the citizens of Hamilton 

County and desires reimbursement from United Health Care of the River 
Valley, Inc..  

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

that the County Mayor be authorized to sign the attached  reimbursement 
contract with United Health Care of the River Valley, Inc. for Health Services 
provided by the Health Department effective April 1, 2015.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 1, 2015 

  
Date 

 































































































No. 415-9 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 1, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF EVS EMERGENCY VEHICLE SPECIALIST 
FOR ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT UNIT PRICING, BEGINNING APRIL 17, 2015, 
THROUGH APRIL 16, 2016, FOR PROTECTIVE CLOTHING FOR EMERGENCY 
MEDICAL SERVICES AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 
CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for contract pricing for 

Protective Clothing for Emergency Medical Services; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from EVS Emergency Vehicle Specialist was considered to be the 

lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS  there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of EVS Emergency Vehicle Specialist for one (1) year contract unit pricing, 
beginning April 17, 2015, through April 16, 2016, for protective clothing for Emergency 
Medical Services is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, and 
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 1, 2015 

  
Date 

 



























No. 415-10 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 1, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF BLACKFOX TACTICAL FOR ONE (1) 
YEAR CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING APRIL 17, 2015, THROUGH APRIL 16, 2016, 
FOR  BODY ARMOR AND EQUIPMENT FOR EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 
AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 
NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for contract pricing for 

body armor and equipment for Emergency Medical Services; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Blackfox Tactical was considered to be the lowest and best bid 

received; and, 
 
WHEREAS: there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Blackfox Tactical for one (1) year contract pricing, beginning April 17, 2015, 
through April 16, 2016, for body armor and equipment for Emergency Medical Services is 
hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County 
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 1, 2015 

  
Date 

 































No. 415-11 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 1, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE “MASTER LIST OF ROADS AND SPEED 
LIMITS” SO AS TO CHANGE THE ROADWAY NAME FOR THE FOLLOWING 
DISTRICT ROAD:  Eliz Crest Road to Elizabeth Crest Road. 
 
WHEREAS, Eliz Crest Road was accepted by Resolution Number 1175-20, on November 

19, 1975; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the residents and property deeds, U.S. Post Office, and Hamilton County GIS 

use the name Elizabeth Crest Road; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

1. That Eliz Crest Road name changed to Elizabeth Crest Road. 
 

 2.  That the speed limit on said road shall remain as originally accepted and that 
violation of the same, when posted, shall be a misdemeanor and punishable as 
such as provided by the laws of the State. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 1, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 415-12 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 1, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF SHERWIN WILLIAMS COMPANY AND 
ENNIS PAINT, INC. FOR ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING MAY 1, 
2015, THROUGH APRIL 30, 2016, FOR WATERBORNE HIGHWAY TRAFFIC PAINT 
AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 
NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS,  bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) year contract 

pricing for waterborne highway traffic paint for the Highway Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bids of Sherwin Williams Company and Ennis Paint, Inc. were considered 

to be the lowest and best bids received; and, 
 
WHEREAS: there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of Sherwin Williams Company and Ennis Paint, Inc. for one (1) year contract 
pricing, beginning May 1, 2015, through April 30, 2016, for waterborne highway traffic paint 
for the Highway Department are hereby accepted, said bids being the lowest and best bids 
received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 1, 2015 

  
Date 

 






















	4-1-15 Public Agenda
	415-_S_Minutes_Recessed Meeting - March 12, 2015 _1484_03-12-15 Recessed
	415-_S_Minutes_Agenda Session - March 12, 2015 _1485_03-12-15 Agenda
	415-_S_Minutes_Regular Meeting - March 18, 2015 _1486_03-18-15 Regular
	415-_S_Report_Trustee Excess Fee Report February 2015_1473_February 2015 Trustee Excess Fee Report
	415-_S_Report_Trustee Monthly Report February 2015_1472_February 2015 Trustee Monthly Report
	415-1_R_Bill Knowles_Notary_1483_04-01-15
	415-1_S_Bill Knowles_Notary_1483_04-01-15A
	415-2_R_Rheubin Taylor_Re appointment of Judicial Commissioners_1443_Template - Judicial Commissioner
	415-3_R_Sheriff Hammond_First Aid Donation_1468_First Aid Donation
	415-4_R_Sam Mairs_Amendment of Juvenile Court Child Support Grant_1481_CHILD SUPPORT RESOLUTION 2015
	415-5_R_Bill Hullander_Trustee Banking Services Agreement Two Year Extension_1488_RES. BANKING SERVICES FOR TRUSTEE
	415-5_S_Bill Hullander_Trustee Banking Services Agreement Two Year Extension_1488_Trustee's Banking Services
	415-6_R_Judge Steelman_Furniture for the Criminal and Sessions Courts_1477_RES. FURNITURE FOR CRIMINAL & SESSIONS COURTS
	415-6_S_Judge Steelman_Furniture for the Criminal and Sessions Courts_1477_Criminal & Sessions Courts Furniture
	415-7_R_Albert Kiser_Microsoft Server and Exchange Licenses_1479_RES. MICROSOFT SERVER & EXCHANGE LICENSES
	415-7_S_Albert Kiser_Microsoft Server and Exchange Licenses_1479_Microsoft Server and Exchange Licenses
	415-8_R_Becky Barnes_United Health Care Reimbursement Contract for services provided by the Health Department._1487_United Health Care Resolution
	415-8_S_Becky Barnes_United Health Care Reimbursement Contract for services provided by the Health Department._1487_United Behavioral Health Contract 2015
	415-9_R_Don Allen_EMS Protective Clothing_1475_RES. EMS PROTECTIVE CLOTHING
	415-9_S_Don Allen_EMS Protective Clothing_1475_EMS Protective Clothing
	415-10_R_Don Allen_Level IIIA Soft Body Armor_1476_RES. BODY ARMOR
	415-10_S_Don Allen_Level IIIA Soft Body Armor_1476_EMS Body Armor
	415-11_R_Todd Leamon_Road Name Change from Eliz Crest Road to Elizabeth Crest Road_1469_elizcrestroad_resolution
	415-12_R_Todd Leamon_Waterborne Highway Traffic Paint Contract_1478_RES. WATERBORNE TRAFFIC PAINT
	415-12_S_Todd Leamon_Waterborne Highway Traffic Paint Contract_1478_Highway Waterborne Traffic Paint

